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July 20, 2011

The Honorable Larry Gossett

Chair, King County Council

Room 1200

C O U R T H O U S E 

Dear Councilmember Gossett:

I am pleased to transmit to the King County Council legislation authorizing the execution of an Interlocal Agreement between King County and the City of Seattle for Jail Services (ILA).  This ILA implements the agreement in principle that Mayor McGinn and I signed in April 2011 and for which members of the County Council and Seattle Council have expressed support.  If executed, this ILA would establish a long-term commitment for misdemeanant jail services between the City of Seattle and King County, replacing the existing ILA as of January 1, 2012, and extending the term through 2030.
This new ILA represents another milestone in the new approach to jail contracting between the County and its partners that has been taking shape since early 2010.  The milestones over the past 15 months include the following:

· An end to the North/East Cities’ process (May 2010) for siting a new jail through collaborative planning with cities to utilize available bed capacity in the region through 2020, including 150 beds from King County.  
· An amendment (November 2010) to the County’s current jail agreement with 24 cities that adjusted the 2011 fee methodology to correct an overstatement of jail fees resulting in large part from an unanticipated decline in jail population.

· The launch of the Regional Jail Group (December 2010) to support collaboration across all jails and jurisdictions in King County to forecast and plan for the changing jail population and to improve coordination of cross-jurisdictional operational challenges in this region’s complex jail system. 
· An agreement in principle (April 2011) between the County and the City of Seattle to develop a new ILA for a long term and durable commitment for jail services through 2030.
The new ILA that I am transmitting today would implement the framework established in the April 2011 agreement in principle.  For the County, the ILA provides for predictable use of our jail capacity, more stable contract revenues, contributions toward any needed jail expansion, and greater operational efficiencies through using available capacity in King County’s jails.  The City receives a commitment for jail services through 2030 at a reasonable and predictable cost and in a location that is uniquely situated to serve the City’s courts, police, and residents.  Moreover, this long-term durable agreement reinforces the City’s and the County’s shared interest in managing jail populations collaboratively and in supporting a wide range of effective diversion, alternatives, and re-entry programs.  The ILA addresses all of the elements from the agreement in principle including the following:
· Term:  The ILA would begin in 2012 and extend through 2030.

· Secure Bed Cap:  The maximum number of City inmates held in the County’s jail facilities would be set at a fixed amount each year while allowing for temporary spikes. The Secure Bed Cap is 228 in 2012 and rises to 335 inmates in 2030.

· Secure Bed Floor:  The City would pay for a minimum number of beds regardless of its use.  The Secure Bed Floor is 175 in 2012 and rises to 258 inmates in 2030.  

· Adjustments to the Secure Bed Cap and Floor:  One of the hallmarks of this ILA is that, while it provides for durable commitments from both parties over the term of the agreement, it also provides for adjustments to reflect unforeseen changes that may occur in jail populations.  With appropriate notice and limitations, the City can decrease its Secure Bed Floor and Cap based on its needs.  Further, the agreement includes provisions for the City to request an increase in the Secure Bed Floor and Cap subject to County approval.

· Jail Fees:  Fees are established for 2012 based on 2011 budgeted costs and rise over time based on inflation-based indexes, with resets based on adopted budgets every five years. 
· Jail Planning and Possible Jail Bed Expansion Surcharge:  Given the long lead time to bring new jail beds on-line, the City and the County would share their respective jail population forecasts and contracting arrangements in support of jail planning.  If the County determines that additional jail capacity is needed, the City will contribute to the capital costs in proportion to the City’s use.
· Dispute Resolution and Termination:  While the current ILA allows for either party to terminate with 100 days notice, the intent under the new ILA is to establish a durable commitment.  To this end, the new ILA includes a new provision for dispute resolution that outlines several steps for the parties to reach resolution, including non-binding mediation.  The only grounds for terminating the ILA are mutual agreement or material breach of the ILA.
While this ILA would be executed between the City of Seattle and the County, I have asked Executive staff on the negotiating team to work with other cities currently contracting with the County for jail services on a potential new agreement to address their different needs.  As required by the current agreement with these cities, they have an opportunity upfront to sign a substantially identical agreement to this Seattle agreement.  However, based on our discussions to date, we expect that few, if any, cities will be interested in this long term arrangement.  Instead, we are developing with these cities a different proposed agreement of shorter duration with no minimum bed floor or contribution to capital expansion, higher booking and maintenance day fees, and retaining the current ILA’s easier termination provisions.  The exact terms will depend on the results of negotiations currently underway. 
If you have any questions regarding this ILA or our new approach to jail contracting, please contact Claudia Balducci, Director, Department of Adult and Juvenile Detention, at 

206-296-1268, or Carrie S. Cihak, Director of Policy and Strategic Initiatives in the Executive Office, at 206-263-9634.

In closing, I want to express my appreciation to Mayor McGinn and his staff for their support and perseverance in working with us through the complex details of this ILA.  In particular, I would like to recognize their willingness to work not only with King County in development of this ILA, but with other cities which contract with King County for jail services.  The result of this work is both a stronger partnership between King County and the City of Seattle and a spirit of collaboration that will benefit all residents and taxpayers of our region for many years to come.  I respectfully request your support in approving execution of this ILA.  
Sincerely,

Dow Constantine

King County Executive
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